CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS OF THE ACADEMIC SENATE OF THE COMPTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

CONSTITUTION

PREAMBLE

We, the faculty of the COMPTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT, in order to promote formal and effective procedures for participating in the formation of district policies on academic and professional matters; to develop faculty participation in the formulation of district policies; and to require a clearly defined organizational structure for such participation, do hereby establish, subject to the limitations set forth by the COMPTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT Board of Trustees and the Legislature of the State of California, this Constitution, replacing all past constitutions and effective after ratification by two-thirds of the faculty voting in said ratification referendum.

ARTICLE I: NAME

The name of this organization shall be THE ACADEMIC SENATE OF THE COMPTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT (HEREAFTER REFERRED TO AS "THE ACADEMIC SENATE").

ARTICLE II: PURPOSE AND MISSION

It is hereby reaffirmed that it is the primary purpose of the Academic Senate to be the principal vehicle for faculty participation in the academic and professional governance of this district. As such, the Academic Senate recognizes itself, in accordance with Title V of Subchapter 2, Sections 53200–53206 *California Code of Regulations*, and with the statewide Academic Senate process. The Compton Community College District Board of Trustees or its designees will consult collegially with the Academic Senate, as duly constituted with respect to academic and professional matters, as defined by law. Procedures to implement this section are developed collegially with the Academic Senate. "Consult collegially" means that the district governing board will relying primarily upon the advice and judgment of the Academic Senate. The Academic Senate defines itself as the primary representative of the Compton College faculty, concerned with making recommendations to the Compton Community College District administration and Board of Trustees in all matters related to the improvement and maintenance of academic standards and faculty professional responsibilities that are under the 10+1 purview of the District.

The "10+1" purview includes the following:

- (1) curriculum, including establishing prerequisites and placing courses within disciplines;
- (2) degree and certificate requirements;
- (3) grading policies;
- (4) educational program development;
- (5) standards or policies regarding student preparation and success;
- (6) district and college governance structures, as related to faculty roles;
- (7) faculty roles and involvement in accreditation processes, including self-study and annual reports;
- (8) policies for faculty professional development activities;
- (9) processes for program review;
- (10) processes for institutional planning and budget development; and
- (11) other academic and professional matters as are mutually agreed upon between the governing board and the academic senate.

The Academic Senate, in order to maintain "effective participation" will consult with affected parties and afford them the opportunities to review and comment upon recommendations, proposals, and other matters. The Academic Senate will hear and give due consideration to such input; however, the Academic Senate retains its primacy regarding academic and professional matters and is not bound to adopt, accommodate, or reach consensus on concerns raised by other constituent groups (ASCCC Local Senates Handbook, 2020, p. 12-13).

The Academic Senate shall present its written views and recommendations to the Board of Trustees through regularly established channels. However, the Academic Senate, after consultation with the administration, may present its views and recommendations directly to the Board of Trustees.

The Senate shall not engage in collective bargaining activities nor affiliate with any professional association, organization or group, except associations of other Senates; however, nothing in this Constitution shall be construed to discourage members of the faculty from freely associating with other groups and organizations, and through such association independently expressing their views to the Administration and the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE III: EXPRESS DUTIES

It is hereby reaffirmed that the principal duties of the Academic Senate are:

- 1) To establish and maintain a consistent communication process, both formal and informal, between itself, as the voice of faculty, and the Compton Community College District administration and Board of Trustees. Such communication is crucial, for an informed faculty is a participatory faculty.
- 2) To accept the responsibility for equal partnership in the collaborative governance of this District, particularly in matters relating to academic issues and faculty

professionalism.

- 3) To make timely, compelling recommendations to the administration, the Board, and the State, regarding academic growth, development, and improvement of the District.
- 4) To regularly inform Compton Community College District faculty on all matters of its deliberations.
- 5) To act as campus lobbyist, advocate, and articulator of Compton Community College District faculty views and interests, with the administration, the public, and other concerned parties.
- 6) To establish a standard of professional conduct (*Code of Ethics*) for Compton Community College District faculty, to monitor faculty adherence to such a standard, and to hear complaints regarding alleged breaches of said standard.
- 7) To raise faculty integrity, professionalism, and respectability, and to monitor faculty adherence to those standards and defend the faculty against any who seek to weaken those standards.
- 8) To be responsible for staff development of district faculty.
- 9) To adhere to a proactive, progressive, and winning stance in all matters that pertain to the growth and development of the Compton Community College District.

ARTICLE IV: Civility Statement

The operation and conduct of the Academic Senate, its sub-committees and its officers will adhere to the Compton College Statement of Civility and Mutual Respect.

The manner in which we interact with one another is critical to cultivating and maintaining a meaningful and effective intellectual environment.

- Compton College is committed to the highest standards of academic and ethical integrity, acknowledging that respect for self and others is the foundation of educational excellence. As such, we will cultivate an environment of mutual respect and responsibility.
- Compton College encourages a climate of respect and inclusiveness that welcomes
 and embraces community members with diverse backgrounds and life experiences;
 deliberately seeks multiple perspectives; and supports the free and open exchange of
 ideas and civil discourse.
- Compton College uses contributions of the community to promote diversity, creativity, accountability, and transparency. Through Collaborative Governance, all constituent groups work together, in good faith, to make decisions related to

policies, procedures, and practices for the benefit of the students and the community that we serve.

Our community can only continue to thrive when we approach each interaction and conversation with an open mind and when each member can contribute fully. Civility facilitates professional growth and achievement and promotes an environment where each person can reach his or her full potential.

Approved by the Academic Senate on December 5, 2019. Approved by the Compton Community College District Board of Trustees on December 10, 2019.

BYLAWS

ARTICLE V: COMPOSITION

SECTION 1. ELECTORATE

- a. The full-time Electorate (herein after referred to as the Full-time Faculty) shall be limited to those non-management certificated persons who are employed on at least a ten-month contract (Code, 53200(a). The full-time faculty shall elect divisional and non-divisional Senators.
- b. The part-time Electorate (hereinafter referred to as the Adjunct Faculty) shall be limited to those non-management persons who are employed less than sixty-seven percent, or as specified by state law, over the ten-month academic year (Code 53200 (a). The Adjunct Faculty shall elect the Adjunct Senators.
- c. For purposes of eligibility, nomination, and voting in individual elections for the Academic Senate, a faculty member with assignment in two or more divisions shall vote in the division in which he/she performs the major part of work. A faculty member may vote only in this division.

SECTION 2. ORGANIZATION

- a. The senators shall be elected from the faculty in each division. Counseling shall be treated as a division.
- b. Divisions having Full Time Equivalent Faculty (FTEF) shall be entitled to senate members on the following basis:
 - 1-14 Full Time Faculty- 3 members
 - 15 and above Full Time Faculty- 5 members
- c. The composition of the Senate shall be as follows:
 - Fine Arts, Communications and Humanities (FACH) 5 senators (1 of the 5 shall be elected from Library Sciences)

- Science, Technology, Engineering and Math (STEM) 5 senators
- Counseling 5 senators
- Social Sciences (SS) 3 senators
- Business and Industrial Studies (BIS) 3 senators
- Health and Public Services (HPS) 3 senators
- Adjunct Faculty 2 senators
- d. Senators representing divisions, teaching or non-teaching faculty not represented by a Division Chairperson, shall be tenured members of the faculty or full-time faculty in at least their second contract year.

SECTION 3. EX-OFFICIO SENATE MEMBERS

The term "ex-officio member" shall mean a voting or non-voting member of the Senate who shall serve as a resource person, advisor, and/or communication link with other campus decision-making bodies. A collaborative and independent Senate and Union will help cultivate a unified and supported faculty body.

- a. Ex-Officio Senate Members Voting
 - Union President
 - Senate Sub-Committee Chairs
- b. Ex-Officio Senate Members Non-Voting
 - Vice-President of Academic Affairs
 - The President of the Associated Student Organization or designee
 - Vice President of Student Services or designee
 - One member of the Compton College Board of Trustees, to be designated by the Senate
- c. Academic Senate Duties of the Union President
 - i. Provide clarification and consultation where there is overlap between the faculty contract and Academic Senate policies.
 - ii. Serve as an Ex-officio voting member.
 - iii. Perform such other tasks as the Senate may assign.
 - iv. Work with the Senate President on committee appointments. The Academic Senate and CCCFE shall have the right to appoint representatives as part of the faculty component of all campus committees as listed in Administrative Regulation 2511 and to any new committees (including hiring committees and evaluation committees), which may additionally be established to which a faculty member may lawfully be appointed.
- d. Academic Senate Duties of the Curriculum Chair
 - i. Chair the Curriculum Committee.
 - ii. Serve as a support person for Compton College faculty developing courses or proposing new programs and as a liaison between the College faculty and Divisional Curriculum Committees at partnering institutions.

- iii. Bring matters from the Curriculum Committee that requires voting approval from the Academic Senate.
- iv. Keep the Academic Senate and the College faculty aware of all matters related to curriculum as discussed by the Compton College Curriculum Committee.
- e. Academic Senate Duties of the Distance Education Faculty Coordinator
 - i. Chair the Distance Education Advisory Committee (DEAC).
 - ii. Maintain records and report to the Academic Senate all actions taken, policies and procedures created by the DEAC and responses thereto.
 - iii. Bring matters from the DEAC that require voting approval from the Academic Senate.
 - *iv.* Chair the Distance Education Curriculum Sub-committee (*DECS*).
 - v. Perform such other tasks as the Senate may assign.
- f. Academic Senate Duties of the Faculty Development Chair
 - i. Chair the Faculty Development Committee (FDC).
 - ii. Maintain records and report to the Academic Senate all actions taken by the FDC and responses thereto.
 - iii. Bring matters from the FDC that require voting approval from the Academic Senate.
 - iv. In coordination with the Vice President of Academic Affairs and the Professional Learning and Engagement Committee (PLEC), shall investigate, monitor and propose policies and programs for faculty professional development, and present proposals for use of faculty development funds to the Senate.
 - v. Perform such other tasks as the Senate may assign.

ARTICLE VI: ELECTION

SECTION 1. DIVISIONAL AND NON-DIVISIONAL REPRESENTATIVES

- a. Each division and non-divisional faculty group shall be responsible for the election of representatives to the Academic Senate.
- b. The Division Chair or a Senate designated representative will announce elections before the March division meeting. Academic Senate representatives shall be elected during the March Division meeting.
- c. Any faculty member that is in their second contract year, after their second evaluation, is eligible to serve. In the event there are not enough eligible faculty candidates, a division can select faculty who are in their first contract year, after their first evaluation, and will be considered by the Executive Board.
- d. Elections shall be held and winners must receive a plurality of the votes. Winners

- should be forwarded to the Academic Senate Vice-President immediately upon election to be announced at the first meeting in April.
- e. Senators will serve a three-year term.
- f. When a Division's or non-divisional group's representative has been elected President or President-Elect of the Academic Senate, that Division or group shall be invited to elect a replacement Senator whose term of office shall coincide with the term of the newly elected President or President-Elect. Election to replace the representative shall take place within the Division or non-divisional group.
- g. If at any time the seat of a representative is vacated before a term expires, the Division or non-divisional group shall conduct a special nomination and election process to replace that representative.

SECTION 2. ADJUNCT SENATORS

- a. The Vice President solicits candidates from the adjunct faculty to hold an election to determine who shall serve as Adjunct Senators during the first Senate meeting in April. The election will be held in the first meeting of May.
- b. Adjunct Senators shall be elected for a three-year term and shall assume their responsibilities at the first regular General Meeting in May.
- c. If at any time, the seat of an Adjunct Senator is vacated before that term expires, the Senate shall conduct a special nomination and election process to replace that Senator in accordance with the election procedures for adjunct senators.

SECTION 3. SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIRS

- a. The Academic Senate shall elect its Senate Sub-committee Chairs from tenured members of the full-time faculty. The Vice President shall issue a call for nominations. The Vice President is responsible for processing nominations and for verifying the eligibility of each nominee. Nominations for chair positions are made from the floor by Senators. At the time of nomination, the nominees must indicate whether they wish to be considered for the position nominated. The Vice President shall be responsible for conducting the election by ballot vote. To be elected, a candidate must receive a vote from a plurality of those senators voting.
- b. When applicable, the elected Subcommittee Chair will subsequently apply for the chair position through the District application process.

SECTION 3. DUTIES OF A SENATOR

Senators shall:

a. Regularly attend meetings of the Academic Senate and vote on issues to represent the interests of the divisions/areas that elected them;

- b. Bring issues from their divisions/areas to the Academic Senate;
- c. Solicit input from their division/area faculty on issues before the Senate.

Senators shall adhere to duties set forth in BP 2520 Academic Senate and the Senate Constitution and Bylaws. Failure to adhere to BP 2520 and the Senate Constitution and Bylaws may be grounds for removal.

ARTICLE VII: OFFICERS

SECTION 1.

The Academic Senate shall choose its President, Vice President, President-Elect, Secretary, Board Representative, Treasurer, from among the members of the Academic Senate. All Senate officers must be tenured members of the full-time faculty when they take office.

SECTION 2.

Nominations: At the second meeting in April, the Vice President shall issue a call for nominations. The Vice President is responsible for processing nominations and for verifying the eligibility of each nominee. Nominees must be members of the Senate. Nominations for office are made from the floor by Senators. All nominees for President shall be sitting full-time Senators. If no sitting senators seek the position of the President, the Senate can open the election to all tenured full-time faculty who served in the Senate within the past three years. At the time of nomination, the nominees must indicate whether they wish to be considered for the position nominated. The order of nomination of offices shall be President, President-Elect when applicable, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Board Representative.

Presentation of Candidates: At the first meeting in May, the nominees shall be presented to the Senate. A statement of candidacy shall be distributed.

Elections: The Vice President shall be responsible for conducting the election. To be elected, a candidate must receive a vote from a plurality of those senators voting. If election voting should be deemed necessary due to campus closure because of an Executive Order, the voting process shall follow the guidelines laid out in Article *VII*, SECTION 2: Electronic Voting.

Announcement of Election Results: The Vice President shall report the election results to the Senate President immediately and to the body of the Senate at the next scheduled meeting.

SECTION 3.

The term of officers, with the exception of the President-Elect which is one year, shall be 2 years from July 1 to June 30. Officers shall assume responsibilities on July 1 of his/her election.

SECTION 4.

The term of each officer shall be for two years, with the exception of the President-Elect, who will serve a dual role for one year as President-Elect and Vice President, and two years as President which is cumulatively three years. This shall not preclude an individual holding a given office at another point in time. Officers may be elected to subsequent terms. The President may be elected to a subsequent term with a term limit of two terms consecutively. The President may run again following two consecutive terms after there is a minimum of a one term break.

SECTION 5.

If the President cannot or does not complete the term of office, the Vice President shall serve as President. The Executive Board shall meet to determine if an election needs to be held.

If an officer, other than the President, cannot or does not complete the term of office, the Executive Board may appoint a replacement for the remainder of the term.

SECTION 6. DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT

- a. The President shall:
 - i. Preside over meetings.
 - ii. Prepare and distribute the agenda for all Academic Senate meetings. All relevant and timely items shall be added to the agenda for discussion.
 - iii. Approve expenditures of all funds in consultation with the Executive Board.
 - iv. Upon invitation, attend meetings of the President/CEO's Cabinet and/or other appropriate District meetings.
 - v. Recommend the agenda for all Academic Senate Board meetings in consultation with the Executive Board.
 - vi. Co-chair Consultative Council.
 - vii. Prepare the agenda for Executive Board meetings. Executive Board members may suggest items to be added to the Executive Board Agenda and Academic Senate Agenda by majority vote.
 - viii. Recommend for the Academic Senate's approval a candidate for the position of Parliamentarian. The Parliamentarian shall have thorough knowledge of the Academic Senate Bylaws and Constitution as well as the most current edition of *Robert's Rules of Order* and *the Ralph M. Brown Act*.
 - ix. Recommend for the Academic Senate's approval a candidate for the position of legislative liaison. The legislative liaison shall be a sitting Senator or a member of the faculty.
 - x. Create appropriate ad hoc committee for Professional Standards and Ethics.
 - xi. Perform all functions that are normally thought to be within the realm of the presiding officer which are not denied by the Bylaws, Senate Rules, or Procedures.
 - xii. Chair the Executive Board; represent the Senate to the administration, the Board of Trustees, and the Academic Senate for the California Community Colleges (ASCCC); ensure full representation of faculty on Senate, Executive

- Board, and campus committees.
- xiii. By the close of the President's term, the President shall prepare a summary report for the incoming President that includes accomplishments and pending business.
- xiv. Work with the Union President on committee appointments. The Academic Senate and CCCFE shall have the right to appoint representatives as part of the faculty component of all campus committees as listed in Administrative Regulation 2511 and to any new committees (including hiring committees and evaluation committees), which may additionally be established to which a faculty member may lawfully be appointed.
- b. Except in matters that call for a secret ballot in tie votes, unless otherwise expressly set forth in this document, the President shall not vote on regular issues before the Academic Senate but shall act as a facilitator and mediator on such issues.

SECTION 7. DUTIES OF THE VICE PRESIDENT

- a. The Vice President shall:
 - i. Preside over meetings in the absence of the President.
 - ii. Assist the Senate President in carrying out the business of the Academic Senate.
 - iii. Attend college and district meetings in the absence of the Senate President.
 - iv. Conduct all elections.
 - v. Chair ad hoc Professional Relations Committee.
 - vi. Review educational policies. The vice president may call on other faculty and other campus members to help investigate, monitor and propose matters concerning educational policies, such as degree and certificate requirements, grading policies and standards, policies regarding student preparation and success, and minimum qualifications.
 - vii. Perform such functions as the President assigns to assist in carrying out the purposes and policies of the Academic Senate.

SECTION 8. DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT-ELECT

- a. The President-Elect shall:
 - Become familiar with the duties of the Senate President; learn pertinent parliamentary procedure; become familiar with the Compton Community College District governance structures; and learn the functions of the ASCCC. The President-Elect is encouraged to attend ASCCC Area C meetings and the plenary sessions.
- b. The President-Elect will serve as the Vice-President of the Senate.
- c. The President-Elect shall be a voting officer of the Executive Board.

SECTION 9. DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY

- a. The Secretary shall:
 - i. Prepare and distribute minutes of all Academic Senate meetings.
 - ii. Maintain an electronic file of all records (minutes, reports, etc.) and official

- documents of the Academic Senate except those placed in the keeping of others, such as records stored in the College archives.
- iii. The Secretary shall be responsible for all official Senate correspondence.
- iv. The Secretary shall maintain the Senate's web page and other internet links as designated by the body.
- v. Be an ex-officio member of Curriculum Committee.
- vi. Perform such functions as the President assigns to assist in carrying out the purposes and policies of the Academic Senate.

SECTION 10. DUTIES OF THE TREASURER

- a. The Treasurer shall:
 - i. Keep the financial records up to date and in good order.
 - ii. Give oral and/or written financial reports of the status of the Academic Senate's finances as required or requested by the Academic Senate.
 - iii. Input all budget items into the institution's software for Executive Board approval.
 - iv. With the approval of the Executive Board, make all properly authorized payments for the Senate which are not inconsistent with the Bylaws, the Senate Rules or the Procedures, and which do not threaten the solvency of the Academic Senate.
 - v. Perform such functions as the President assigns to assist in carrying out the purposes and policies of the Academic Senate.

SECTION 11. DUTIES OF THE PAST-PRESIDENT

- a. The Past-President of the Senate shall:
 - i. Serve for one year as advisor to the Executive Board.
 - ii. Serve as Vice-President of the Senate for one year.
 - iii. Be considered an officer of the Senate.
 - iv. Advise the President of the Senate and serve as a voting member of the Executive Board of the Senate.
 - v. Serve the Academic Senate in any capacity that the Executive Board determines is appropriate.

SECTION 12. DUTIES OF THE FACULTY REPRESENTATIVE TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

- a. The Faculty Representative to the Board of Trustees shall:
 - i. Present the faculty viewpoint to inform and make recommendations to the Board of Trustees on relevant issues and concerns.
 - ii. Attend all Board meetings and Academic Senate meetings and report to the Senate on activities and accomplishments.
 - iii. Communicate with any and all committees or groups on campus, as he/she deems relevant.
 - iv. Develop relationships with Board of Trustee members to assist in accomplishing

SECTION 13. DUTIES OF THE ADJUNCT REPRESENTATIVE

- a. The Adjunct Representative shall:
 - i. Serve as the voice of the adjunct faculty of the college in matters specifically related to adjuncts.
 - ii. Help foster respect and inclusion among all faculty.

SECTION 14. MEMBERSHIP OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

- i. All officers, President, Vice President, Past President, President-Elect, Secretary, Board Representative, Treasurer, one of the Adjunct Senators shall constitute the Executive Board.
- ii. The Senate receives 120% release time and the Executive Board will determine how it shall be designated.
- iii. The Executive Board may invite guests to an Executive Board meeting with majority Executive Board member approval.

SECTION 15. RECALL OF OFFICERS

Upon presentation to the President of the Academic Senate of a petition signed by at least ten percent of full-time faculty requesting that an officer be recalled, the Academic Senate's Vice President will verify that the signatures are signed by at least ten percent of full-time faculty, and will conduct the voting process, if needed. Just cause for recall of officers shall be provided in writing.

The Academic Senate shall distribute such a proposal to all full-time faculty within one week following its next scheduled meeting. The Academic Senate shall direct the President to distribute any comments as submitted related to the recall of a Senate officer and to submit the proposal for recall for vote of full-time faculty within four weeks after the distribution of the proposal to the full-time faculty. If the recall is approved by a majority of the full-time faculty who voted, such officer shall be removed from office and the Academic Senate shall determine the process for filling the vacancy. In the case of the recall of the President, the petition shall be presented to the Vice President, who shall perform the duties of the President listed above in this Article VII Section 6.

ARTICLE VIII: MEETINGS

a Regular meetings of the Academic Senate shall be held at least twice a month during the normal operating semesters of the academic year, on the first and third Thursdays following the first and third Tuesdays. Meeting dates can be adjusted to account for holidays and events. The Executive Board shall establish a calendar of meeting dates and shall distribute them to all Senators.

- b. A quorum shall consist of a simple majority of Academic Senate members. When a quorum is lost, no action shall be taken; however, discussion may continue.
- c. Special meetings of the Academic Senate shall be held as deemed necessary by a majority of the Academic Senate members or by the Executive Board of the Academic Senate.
- d. All meetings of the Academic Senate shall be open to any member of the faculty and, upon request to the Executive Board of the Academic Senate, to any other interested parties as well.
- e. The agenda of the Academic Senate shall be distributed by the President. At a meeting of the Faculty Senate, any senator may present an item for a future agenda of the Faculty Senate providing there is no protest, by a member of the Faculty Senate. In case of protest, a majority vote of the Faculty Senate shall prevail.
- f. Actions of the Academic Senate shall be in the form of motions or resolutions approved by a majority of a quorum of the membership present.
- g. No proxy voting will be allowed.
- h. The president may place the Senate into executive session as prescribed in *Robert's Rules of Order* (latest rev. ed.).
- i. Absence from three Senate meetings per semester without excuse, said absence recorded by the Secretary, shall be construed as resignation. If someone is not able to serve for one semester, a substitute must be elected following the division election process.
- j. A quorum of the Senators may adjourn any Senate meeting to meet again at a stated day and hour. Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting shall be given to absent Senators, either in writing or electronically. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the Senators present at any Senate meeting, either regular or special, may adjourn until the time fixed for the next regular meeting of the Senate.
- k. The President, Vice President, President-Elect or, in their absence, any officer shall preside at meetings of the Senate. The Secretary of the Senate or, if absent, any person appointed by the presiding officer, shall act as Secretary of the Senate meeting. Except as otherwise provided, Robert's Rules of Order (Latest rev. ed.) shall govern the conduct of all meetings.
- I The agenda for all meetings shall be prepared by the President, distributed to all faculty members, and posted for the public at least three school days prior to regular meetings of the Senate. A motion to approve the agenda shall be called for as the first order of business, at which time any motions to amend the agenda or order of items shall be considered.
- m. Members of the faculty may refer inquiries and recommendations to the Senate through

any Senator or through any officer of the Senate, and any such referrals shall come before the Senate, be acted upon, and shall result in a report by the Senate to the referring member.

- n. Any recommendation referred to the faculty which shall be approved by a majority of those voting shall become official policy of the Senate and shall be forwarded to the administration and/or Board of Trustees as the recommendation of the Senate.
- o. The Executive Board of the Academic Senate shall meet at least twice a month during normal operating semesters. The Executive Board shall establish a calendar of meeting dates to be distributed to all Executive Board members.
- p. The Academic Senate President and Faculty Representative to the Board of Trustees are expected to attend all Board meetings throughout the academic year not including meetings held during the summer and the winter months.

SECTION 1. REMOTE MEETINGS

- a. The Academic Senate may meet remotely in the event that in person meetings are not allowed because of an Executive order.
 - The Senate must, each time, give notice of meetings, advertise the means by which the public may comment and the procedure the Senate will use to address "requests for reasonable modification or accommodation from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the *Americans with Disabilities Act* and resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility."
 - All requirements in both the *Bagley-Keene Act* and the *Brown Act* expressly or impliedly requiring the physical presence of members, the clerk, or other personnel of the body, or of the public as a condition of participation in or quorum for a public meeting are waived.
 - Where posting of agendas is concerned, The Senate is responsible for adhering to the same "timeframes" and "means otherwise prescribed by the *Bagley-Keene Act* or the *Brown Act*" but that each notice must also give information about how members of the public may observe and comment and about how the legislative body will resolve requests for accommodations and accessible materials. The Senate may alert the public via "the most rapid means of communication available at the time" which may include the Academic Senate's website or an email communication.
 - When it is neither sound nor advisable to travel to the campus to post a physical agenda, but the Senate will make all efforts to ensure that the meetings are publically noticed in accordance with Government Code section 54954.2.
 - The Senate may meet remotely using teleconference technology without providing a physical location or requiring any member or personnel be present at a physical location accessible to the public.
 - The agenda does not need to state the teleconference location from which each member will participate.

- Members of the legislative body do not need to allow members of the public to
 join them at their physical location in order to comment. Instead, agendas and
 notices should state the means by which the public may participate.
- Agendas do not need to be posted at every teleconference location, as they normally would be under *Brown Act* or *Bagley-Keene*.
- The legislative body can meet remotely even if a quorum or more of its members are joining remotely from beyond the boundaries of the legislative body's jurisdiction.
- The following procedures for speaking attendees, including both Senators and guests, participating remotely, are as follows:
 - When you join the meeting, all participants shall type their name and appropriate division in the chat box for attendance reporting in the minutes.
 - Participants shall wait to be called upon by the President to speak.
 - Participants shall state their name before they make a comment or ask a question so that they can be accurately acknowledged in the minutes.
 - All voting shall be conducted via technology that tracks an individual voting member's vote to their name.

SECTION 2: ELECTRONIC VOTING

The Senate and Senate Sub-Committees may use electronic voting for resolutions, recommendations, or other deliberative matters, so long as the following requirements are fulfilled:

- Compliance with *Robert's Rules of Order*, relating to electronic voting in order to provide, at a minimum, simultaneous aural communications between all meeting participants.
- Compliance with all other committee meeting regulations provided for under this section.
- The Academic Senate has authorized voting electronically in advance.
- Voting members of the Senate all receive the same information.
- A date and time is set for the start and end of each electronic vote.
- No motion is approved by less than a majority of the current voting members of the entity, excluding vacancies.
- Votes conducted electronically are recorded in the minutes of the next regular meeting.
- The Vice President shall provide to each voter either a ballot or instructions for voting electronically, accompanied by all relevant texts, such as background information.
- For electronic voting, the Vice President shall utilize a system which verifies each voter's identity and which maintains security.
- The Vice President shall deliver the electronically received votes to the agency authorized to count the ballots and to certify the results to the Academic Senate Executive Board.

• The Vice President shall follow all elections procedures in Article VI.

ARTICLE IX: COMMITTEES

SECTION 1. SUB-COMMITTEES

- a. The Senate shall have the power to create such standing or temporary committees as it deems necessary. Such committees shall be known as "Senate Sub-Committees." Faculty Senate Sub-Committee members shall be appointed by the Senate President in consultation with the Executive Board, and will be approved by the Senate.
- b. Standing Senate Sub-Committees shall adopt a Constitution which includes a mission and purpose statement, roles and responsibilities, and goals.
- c. Senate sub-committees include:
 - i. Curriculum
 - Distance Education Curriculum
 - ii. Distance Education Advisory Committee
 - Faculty Course Review
 - iii. Faculty Development
- d. Senate ad-hoc committees include:
 - i. Professional Relations
 - ii. Professional Standards and Ethics

SECTION 2. DISTRICT COMMITTEES

As indicated in Article II, Senate-designated representation is called for on all relevant District committees charged with either making policy or policy recommendations. This includes, but is not limited to, the following regular, standing District committees. *AR 2511 Council and Committee Structure* states Certificated Faculty shall be appointed by the Academic Senate and CCCFE Certificated Employees.

- 1. Consultative Council
- 2. Accreditation Steering Committee
- 3. Institutional Effectiveness
- 4. Equal Employment Opportunity/Staff Diversity
- 5. Planning and Budget
- 6. Facilities
- 7. Technology
- 8. Enrollment Management
- 9. Student Success
- 10. Student Equity
- 11. Professional Learning and Engagement
- 12. Health, Safety, and Parking
- 13. Auxiliary Services

- 14. Audit
- 15. Calendar
- 16. Tartar Support Network
- 17. Tartar Focused and Directed Pathways to Completion

The Academic Senate shall also have primary responsibility for the operation of the following District committees, in accordance with the Education Code and in consultation with the collective bargaining unit and administration, as set forth in contract and policy. *AR* 2511 Council and Committee Structure states Certificated Faculty shall be appointed by the Academic Senate and CCCFE Certificated Employees.

- 1. Faculty Hiring Committees
- 2. Faculty Equivalence
- 3. Hiring Prioritization
- 4. Administrative Hiring/Retreat
- 5. Administrative Evaluation
- 6. Sabbatical Leave

SECTION 3. Committee Organization

- A. Any committee policy or procedure not covered by the Senate Constitution or by these bylaws shall be covered by *Robert's Rules of Order*, *Newly Revised*.
- B. Chairpersons of Academic Senate Subcommittees shall:
 - i. Regularly hold committee meetings.
 - ii. Regularly report to the Executive Board.
 - iii. Any change in faculty status or resignation from the committee must be made immediately known to the committee chair, who will inform the Executive Board so that a replacement can be sought.

C. Committee Meetings:

- i. All standing committees shall meet on a regular basis, according to the published schedule.
- ii. Meeting locations shall be arranged by the committee chairs.
- D. Quorum and Voting:
 - iii. The quorum for each standing committee shall consist of a majority of the committee membership, not including vacant positions.
 - iv. A simple majority of those voting shall carry a motion.
 - v. The chairperson shall have the right to vote on all matters.
- E. Each committee chairperson shall be responsible for adequate record keeping procedures. All official committee actions and resolutions shall be recorded and sent to the Senate office for filing and/or distribution. All official committee communications shall be routed through the Senate office.
- F. Standing committees of the Senate are subject to the *Brown Act*.

SECTION 4. PROFESSIONAL RELATIONS COMMITTEE (AD HOC)

The Professional Relations Committee (PRC) is convened when necessary. The Academic Senate receives, in writing, matters related to problems between faculty members. It is the committee's responsibility to investigate, mediate, and render a decision regarding such a matter. The composition of the committee is as follows:

- The Senate Vice President chairs the committee
- The Senate President acts as Ombudsman.
- The Senate Secretary types or otherwise records the meeting.

The committee presents its findings to the Executive Board of the Senate who ratifies the decision or requests additional information regarding the decision. Upon recommendation, the decision may be presented to the next meeting of the full Senate. This full Senate meeting will be conducted in closed session. Upon the findings and recommendations of the PRC, the full Senate shall vote to acquit or censure the individual against whom the complaint was brought. In case of censure, the report of the Senate's action and formal notification of censure shall be recorded and distributed to the campus body.

Time Limits:

Within five (5) school days after a charge involving a faculty member is presented to the Professional Relations Committee, the Committee shall meet to hear the charge. Twenty (20) school days, following the original meeting, shall be allowed for the recommendation of the Committee to the Senate Executive Board.

Time limits may be extended if circumstances require and/or both parties agree to an extension. However, every effort shall be made by the Committee to make its recommendation within the suggested time limits, and before the end of the academic year.

SECTION 5. PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS AND ETHICS

The Academic Senate may consider matters of professional standards and ethics as may apply to academic institutional concerns. The Academic Senate may create an Ad Hoc Committee for such matters that concern the academic well-being and management of the institution. The Senate may, upon the ad hoc committee findings, pass: a) Resolutions of Commendation b) Resolutions of Confidence c) Resolutions of No Confidence, or d) Resolutions of Censure, as well as other measures as it may deem appropriate and lawful.

The Senate President will appoint a Senator or full-time faculty member to chair the ad hoc Committee. The Chair will then select several volunteers to help advise them with the tasks. The findings of the ad hoc committee will be presented to the Academic Senate for discussion and ratification.

SECTION 6. RESIGNATION

A Senator and/or officer may resign by giving a written notice of resignation to the Academic Senate Executive Board. The Division is responsible for electing a senator to fill

the vacancy. The Executive Board, where necessary, shall appoint an officer.

ARTICLE X: SENATOR EMERITUS/A

SECTION 1.

- a. Senator Emeritus/a of the Academic Senate may be granted upon retirement by the Executive Board of the Academic Senate to persons who made outstanding contributions which have supported the aims and functions of the Academic Senate.
- b. The Senator Emeritus is a non-voting member of the Academic Senate.

ARTICLE XI: AMENDMENT TO CONSTITUTION

SECTION 1. ADMENDMENT PROCESS

- a. Amendments to this Constitution may be adopted in one of two ways:
 - (1) By recommendation of 2/3 vote of the Senate membership and ratification by 2/3 of those faculty members voting.
 - (2) By recommendation of 10% or more of the full-time faculty and approval of 2/3 of those faculty members voting.
- b. The amendment procedure may be used to substitute a constitution or a new set of regulations for the organization. Such a new constitution or regulations shall become effective immediately upon ratification by the faculty.
- c. The Vice President of the Senate shall conduct all voting concerning amendments.
- d. All voting shall be by ballot and a notice of all ratified changes shall be sent to the Board of Trustees.
- e. Editorial Changes. Non-substantive, editorial changes in the Constitution may be made by a majority vote of the Senate. Any changes to the appendices may be made by a majority vote of the Senate.

ARTICLE XII: OPERATING PROCEDURES

SECTION 1.

In order to implement its purposes, the Senate may request information from or meet with (a) The Board of Trustees or any of its members, (b) administrative officers, or (c) any Compton Community College District office or its representatives.

SECTION 2.

After consultation with the administration, the Senate may present its written views and

recommendations to the Board of Trustees (Title V of Subchapter 2, Sections 53200–53206 *California Code of Regulations*)

SECTION 3.

Notwithstanding anything in this document to the contrary, if the Senate, by a two-thirds vote of its membership, finds that there are compelling reasons not to hold an election for Senate members in April of a given academic year, or not to hold an election for Senate officers in May of a given academic year, the Senate may postpone the election or elections until the fall semester. In any action taken to postpone an election pursuant to this section, the Senate shall also set a new date for the election which shall be no sooner than two and no later than four weeks after the beginning of the fall semester.

Revisions 4/2011 and 06/2020 and 4/2022.